KING
COUNTY

LIBRARY
SYSTEM

PRESENT
KCLS BOARD

Charlotte Spitzer
Judge LeRoy McCullough
Lucy Krakowiak

KCLS Staff
Bill Ptacek

Linda Glenicki
Charlene Richards
Denise Siers
Nancy Smith
Jeanne Thorsen
Julie Wallace
Bruce Schauer
Jed Moffitt

Kay Johnson

Greg Smith
Jennifer Wiseman

GUESTS

Roy Parke
Elisabeth Hardison
Brittany Hardison
Gayla Hardison
Mizu Sugimura
Margaret Nelson
Lisa Johnson
Dave Kaplan
Radhika Kumar
Luraine MacLeod
Lynda Jenkins
Scott Bonifield
Jeanne Epp
Merlin Epp

Jim Bowen
Marguritte Sullivan
Tom Petersen
Warren Messer
Lori Robinson
Gary Robinson
Jane Nelson
Rosemary Carrel
Michael Nelson
Connie Reed

Al Leichner
Susan Veltfort
Diana Prenguber
Frosty Hardison
Jenifer Loomis
Sandi Halverson
Yoshiko Saheki

oOo~NOoO O WN PR

King County Library System
Board of Trustees

Service Center
5pm ¢ 25 April 2006

MOTIONS APPROVED

Motion to approve the Board Agenda as amended

Minutes from March 28, 2006 were deemed approved

Motion to approve Payroll expenditures

Motion to approve General Fund #0010 expenditures

Motion to approve Construction Bond Fund 88 #3020 expenditures

Motion to approve Capital Project Fund 2005 #3070 expenditures

Motion to approve Gift Fund #6010 expenditures

Motion not to proceed with the Sound Transit site for reasons stated, including public
comment and sense of community established by current site

Motion to approve Resolution 2006-02 - Surplus Furniture and Equipment

[{e]

CALL TO ORDER
President Charlotte Spitzer called the meeting to order at 5:11pm sans quorum.

PUBLIC COMMENT

In the interest of time and to allow as many members of the public an opportunity to
speak, Lucy Krakowiak asked speakers to limit their remarks to three (3) minutes for an
individual, or five (5) minutes if speaking on behalf of a group or organization.

Roy Parke said the Federal Way 320" Library is easily accessible at its current location and that
moving it to the Transit Center site, which already has increased congestion, will only increase
traffic. He asked that the Federal Way 320™ Library be renovated where it is. He recommended
KCLS build another library east of I-5 in addition to current Federal Way 320" Library location.

Elizabeth Hardison said it would be a bad idea if KCLS tries to move the Federal Way 320"
Library. She said it would be an endangerment to children, referring to a shooting that occurred
a little more than a month ago. She also said moving the library would put kids in danger of
other activities near the Transit Center, including soliciting and loitering.

Britney Hardison said her opinion is that Federal Way 320™ Library should not be moved to an
unsafe area. She said children her age and younger should be able to go to the library at its
current location, not at the Transit Center where no more than 2 months ago gun shots were
fired. She said the citizens should not be cheated. The City wants the Federal Way 320" Library
moved, but that’s not how the people feel. If the library is moved, it won’t be right or honest.

Gail Hardison said she represent citizens in her housing development near the very accessible
Federal Way 320" Library. She said the current library is on a bus line, is within the City’s
downtown “frame” and it’s safely located for adults or children driving and walking. She

emphasized that the library is conducive to community involvement and families and that many people in her
development share those ideals - being able to take their children to the library and let them go to different
areas. A library closer to I-5 with access to a major thoroughfare, makes it too easy for children to be taken. She
said a temporary or mobile library east of I-5 would be ideal and emphasized that moving the library is viewed as
the ultimate bait and switch. She said the proposed location is unsafe and impractical for pedestrians, whether
they are seniors or mothers with children. She added that that the Transit Center site exposes her children to
what she’s fought to keep out of their lives: vagrants, drugs and alcohol. She said the taxpayers voted on the
verbiage in the bond measure; moving the library would be a betrayal to those voters. Moving the library will
result in litigation, which voters will pay for, as well as a loss of support for future elections.

KCLS Board Meeting

Page 1 25 April 2006



Mizu Sugimura said as a child she used a Seattle Public Library mini-branch in the Holly Park housing project. She
said it was the greatest resource for kids in the poor, working class neighborhood. When she moved to Federal
Way in 1969 she discovered the Federal Way 320" Library. She said it was clear that people of all types were
welcome there, as was indicated when closing time was announced in several languages. She said that the
Library Administration may favor more retail-oriented development to serve future patrons, but said all kids
should have access to even a small library. She said a visit to library is more important than solitary, singular-use
resources because it permits access to library resources and meaningful personal interaction. She emphasized
that if libraries continue in the current direction, their historical role may be lost and their relevance may be as
imperceptible as the difference between one Wal-Mart and another.

Margaret Nelson showed photos of the Federal Way 320" Library exterior and aerial photos of the current library
within the City’s downtown frame (adjacent to multi and single-family housing). She reiterated that the library
is the anchor of the local neighborhood and a safe place to go. Moving the library would move the kids' safe
haven. She also showed photos of the proposed Transit Center site, which is surrounded by commuter and transit
lanes and next to an I-5 exit ramp. She referenced Board Resolution 2004-03, KCLS’ Capital Plan, the September
2004 voter’s pamphlet and promotional flyers that all reference that the Federal Way 320" Library will be
replaced and expanded at the current site. She said the current library is used by students from a multitude of
schools and neighborhoods at a location safer that one adjacent to a transit center and multi-story parking
garage. Finally, she said KCLS already owns the current library site where there is enough room for expansion.

Margaret Nelson read a letter on behalf of H. David Kaplan, who was unable to attend the meeting. H. David
Kaplan said he was one of seven Federal Way residents who asked the Board in March to honor the essence of
KCLS® September 2004 flyers, which state that the Federal Way 320" Library would be rebuilt at its present
location. He mentioned that 875 people have signed petitions sending the same message and a total of 93 people
spoke at three Federal Way City Council meetings and KCLS’ public meeting on April 12 advocating rebuilding in
situ. He referred to a letter from the Federal Way Chamber of Commerce supporting a new library building at its
current site and pointed out that, by unanimous vote, the City Council passed a resolution to send KCLS a letter
“requesting that KCLS no longer consider the Transit Center site as a potential location for relocation of the
320" library.” In light of these facts, H. David Kaplan requested that the Board issues an irrevocable and
unequivocal commitment to rebuild the Federal Way 320" Library on the land it currently occupies.

Lisa Johnson said one of the reasons given to move the library is to increase circulation. Referring to a News
Tribune article, she quoted Bill Ptacek saying “...the 320" Library has the fourth-lowest circulation among 14
libraries in the King County system that have between 5,000 and 10,000-square-feet.” Lisa Johnson asked if
libraries should be evaluated by the bottom line and pointed out that in comparison to KCLS libraries that are
closed on Sunday; the Federal Way 320" Library has the second highest circulation. She attributed this to the
library being a place for children. She emphasized the number of items that can be checked out by kids who are
“circulation profitable.” She said moving the library will prohibit kids from walking or riding their bikes and
discourage mothers with their children from visiting because they’ll have to negotiate parking. She said moving
the library decreases KCLS’ best customer base and asked the Board to embrace the library’s current location for
its history, importance to the community, safety and aesthetics.

Radhika Kumar spoke on behalf of 875 citizens and bond servants who reacted viscerally to a proposed relocation
and signed petitions to keep the library at its current location. She said Federal Way is different than cities like
Burien, Kenmore, Sammamish and Newcastle, where libraries are being built downtown, because Federal Way
(named for a road) was a transit town long before Sound Transit. She said patrons carved out a corner of
community and connections at the Federal Way 320" Library and is host to students from multiple schools and
neighborhoods, two long-standing book groups and refugees just learning English. She asked KCLS not to brand
Federal Way 320" as a commuter library and suggested that KCLS embrace the synergy of the current location.
She asked the Board to preserve the integrity of 2004 bond votes and instill confidence for future elections.

Luraine MacLeod said she naively believed in previous campaign promises related to getting a road paved to an
elementary school and explained that it took a lot of time and effort for residents to get that promised realized.
She said she is in a similar situation with KCLS considering using funds (intended for remodeling the current
Federal Way 320" Library) to instead relocate it. She mentioned that residents recently rejected a school levy,
noting that Federal Way has major issue of public trust because what they vote for and pass is not always what
happens. She likened the well-attended library to a well-tended garden using comparisons of planting in the
right place with locating libraries, eradicating weeds like eradicating misinformation, etc. She asked the Board
to exercise wisdom and act on overwhelming community input to keep the Federal Way 320™ Library where it is,
or future KCLS measures will have little or no chance of passing. She asked if KCLS has received a Letter of
Intent regarding the Sound Transit Site.

KCLS Board Meeting Page 2 25 April 2006



Lynda Jenkins said “if its not broken, don’t fix it.” She said society wants to replace things over and over again
rather than keep things as they are and maintain them. She said she feels the Federal Way 320™ Library is part
of our history; why remove it? She said she raised five children there and is grateful to have it.

Jean Epp, who has lived within blocks of the Federal Way 320" Library for 43 years, spoke for the children in the
neighborhood. A teacher and self-described book fanatic, she is currently working as a reading specialist for a
Title | program where many students don’t have books at home. During the past five years, she said the make-up
of her neighborhood has changed to include Ukrainian, Latinos and African Americans. She said the Federal Way
320" Library is vital to the community, where books aren’t available in every home, and that it needs to stay in
its current location. She said it is the only place of safety, civility and beauty remaining in neighborhood.

Merlin Epp said he graduated from college in 1962 and moved from Ferndale to Federal Way (named after
Federal Highway). He said the first library was in a small white building located on the knoll of the old Federal
Way Shopping Center. One of the greatest moments for Federal Way, he said, was when the library was built on
South 320™ Street; one of the saddest moments was when it was burned down. He said the library rose from
ashes and has again become a significant part of the neighborhood. As a teacher at Federal Way High School for
37 years, in a school district with incredible difficulties (primarily financial because of a modest tax base), he
said that the school library seemed to suffer first during cut backs. He noted, however, that he had the
satisfaction of referring students to a resource within walking distance of campus - the Federal Way 320"
Library. He said he would appreciate it if the Board would maintain the library in its current location, in a
neighborhood with a nearby elementary, middle and high school.

James Bowen said he represents the patrons of 19 libraries. Referencing KCLS’ Vision statement, he asked who
decides what the community’s needs are: the patrons or KCLS Administration. Prior to clustering, he said the
library was the heart of and an advocate for the community. Since clustering, he said the staff serves and
advocates for multiple different communities, which speaks to the diminishment of the library as a community
advocate. He also said clustering is changing the pattern of behavior and teamwork in the library - that the
loyalties between staff and patrons have diminished and that the library is a branch of a centralized office
instead of a neighborhood institution. He asked how KCLS” evaluation process will take into consideration
relationships, teamwork and a sense of community. He reminded the Board how many patrons have taken the
time to travel to previous meetings to speak against clustering. In addition to their voice and opinion, he said
the King County Council members have expressed concern and intend to request a Performance Audit of KCLS;
the Mercer Island and Maple Valley city councils have written the Board; and King County Executive Ron Sims
met with Director Ptacek. James Bowen said no evidence has been provided that indicates clustering has
improved KCLS operations and that a request for a long range plan was met with financial, population and
circulation data. He said he can only conclude that KCLS, an operation responsible for more than 90 million
dollars, does not have a long-range plan and that clustering is based on faulty concepts, data and decision-
making. He said clustering is inefficient and is diminishing and disrupting service and operations. He asked what
more can be done to make the Board cease clustering and asked the Board to take it under active consideration
that he and the patrons of the 19 libraries he represents, no longer have confidence in Director Ptacek.

Marguritte Sullivan, a long-time KCLS patron, said the Mercer Island Library is her favorite hangout, but said she
doesn’t understand why the Director wants to change the System and destroy its efficiency and effectiveness.
She said its caused librarians, who are frustrated about rotating to other libraries, to leave KCLS and has also
caused a profound disagreement between Bill Ptacek and KCLS patrons. She said the Board is mandated to set a
long-range plan for the organization and therefore needs to step up to responsibility. She suggested that the
Board participate in community meetings to maintain relationships with the public and diffuse anger.

Tom Petersen read a statement on behalf of Barbara Spindel, who was unable to attend the meeting. Barbara
Spindel, a citizen, taxpayer and long-time patron of KCLS, said she is opposed to clustering, as it is not an
improvement. She said she is disturbed that the Board is more concerned with managing speakers than dealing
with clustering, the root issue. Alluding to the well-attended Board meetings since November 2005, Barbara
Spindel said the Board is missing the point: the issue is not how to manage the number of people coming to voice
their unhappiness with KCLS policies; the issue is the policies themselves. She asked the Board to respond to the
citizens they represent and not wait until the March 2007 evaluation of clusters. She expressed her belief that
the best and brightest will have department and a lifetime of affiliations and loyalties will have been broken by
then. She asked the Board to stop clustering before more damage is done.

Warren Messer said he is the “poster boy” against clustering in the Covington, Maple Valley and Black Diamond
cluster. He reiterated that he is strictly against clustering and said he is dissatisfied with the new librarians
being rotated throughout the cluster. He said librarians are being pressured not to say anything about clustering

KCLS Board Meeting Page 3 25 April 2006



or respond to questions. He said he asked himself, if clustering is such great concept, shouldn’t it be used in his
own business, or maybe at Boeing, or by the police, etc. He said he wasn’t sure if librarians were unionized, but
said he knows that 95% of library employees are women, who will go along with any decision if they’re brow beat
down. He concluded by saying clustering doesn’t make sense.

Jane Nelson complimented the Board for providing food during the meeting, but said the venue is not good,
especially for audience members like her who are deaf and rely on lip-reading. She suggested a better
arrangement be explored. She also addressed inconsistencies related to reciprocity between KCLS and other
libraries outside the System. She said it is her understanding that KCLS has reciprocal agreements with the
Renton Public Library and Sno-Isle Libraries through which KCLS provides services but does not charge for them.
In the case of the Seattle Public Library, however, KCLS is paid an annual fee, but provides services worth much
more than it is reimbursed (an issue she acknowledged the Board is currently wrestling with). She pointed out
that these practices are odd in light of the fact that several years ago, when Mercer Island was evaluating the
pros and cons of annexing to KCLS, residents we were told that if they chose not to annex there could be no
reciprocal agreement with KCLS for interlibrary loan (free or otherwise). It is interesting that now some libraries
are being provided this same service at no charge. She also concurred with Barbara Spindel’s written testimony
that the Board should consider why the number of speakers at Board meetings is growing.

Rosemarie Carrel shared her observations regarding the management of public comment period. She asked why
the Board is trying to control the period when it’s the only time the public can make their opinions and desires
known to the Board and the Library Director. She added that some of the issues are more complex that can be
written in two or three sentences and that face-to-face conversations are more personal and interactive than e-
mail. She said the concept of severely limiting public input is only good when such input is not listened to and
suggested that perhaps the Board and KCLS leadership feel they know it all and should be left alone.

Michael Nelson, an avid library user and fan of KCLS, reminded the Board that his favorite library is Burien. He
said when he enters the Burien Library he gets a nice feeling throughout his body like he’s entering a work of
art. He added that he loves tall buildings and suggested that KCLS libraries should be built upwards. He also
asked the Board to keep libraries away from the downtown congestion of their home cities. Instead of doubling
the size of the Burien Library in downtown Burien, he suggested adding additional stories to the current building.

Frosty Hardison said an examination of census numbers for 2000 shows Federal Way is saturated with two
libraries west of 1-5. He acknowledged that areas east of I-5 are good areas to explore for expanding library
service in Federal Way. He suggested staff superimpose an image of population density over a map of KCLS’
service area to aid in determining future improvements/expansions if that’s the Library System’s intent.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of the agenda. LeRoy McCullough seconded and the motion passed
unanimously.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
There having been no changes to the draft March 28, 2006 minutes, they were deemed approved.
FINANCE REPORT

Linda Glenicki reviewed current finances noting March expenditures were $7.3 million versus a monthly budget
average of $6.8 million. The above average monthly spending is driven by several large one-time expenditures in
capital equipment, including $433,000 to Innovative Interfaces as the third and final payment for the Millennium
integrated library system software, $391,000 for the purchase of a digital press in the Graphics department and
$44,000 for two Toyota Priuses (budgeted fleet vehicle replacements). Year-to-date expenditures are $19.1
million (23.3% of budget versus 25.0% of the year completed). This compares to March year-to-date expenditures
in 2005 of $16.8 million (21.2% of the budget).

March revenues were $2.4 million with the largest component being $2.0 million in current year property taxes.
Year-to-date revenues are $3.9 million versus $3.7 million in 2005. Fines and lost materials payments are
showing a slight decline versus prior year.

Expenditures from the 307 Capital Project Fund 2005 in March were $120,000 for various architectural,
consulting, real estate or construction services at various locations. The largest expenditure was $40,000 at

KCLS Board Meeting Page 4 25 April 2006



Covington, followed by $25,000 at Snoqualmie. Expenditures in the 302 Fund in March were $21,000 with small
payments being made on the Self Check-In system and Black Diamond projects.

PAYMENT OF BILLS

Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of Payroll Expenditures in the amount of $2,141,563.08; Checks March
1-15" Chk #: 118853-119889; 130970-131142 and March 16-31° Chk #: 119890-120928; 131143-131323.
LeRoy McCullough seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

LeRoy McCullough moved approval of General Fund #0010 Expenditures March 2006 in the amount of
$7,698,315.03; (Travel Advances) Chk #782-786, (3/7) Chk #89372-89464, (3/9) Chk #89465-89477, (3/10)
Chk #89478-89600; 89603-89750, (3/16) Chk #89760-89848, (3/17) Chk #89851-89856; 89857-89860;
89861-89982, (3/21) Chk #89984, (3/23) Chk #89985-89989; 89990-90062; 90065-90109, (3/27) Chk
#90112-90113, (3/29) Chk #90114-90207; 90209-90211, (3/30) Chk #90212-90283, (3/31) Chk #90292-
90380, (4/4) Chk # 90381-80390; 90391-90394; 90395, (Voids) Chk # 89696; 89873; 89954. Lucy
Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of Construction Bond Fund ’88 #3020 Expenditures March 2006 in the
amount of $22,268.78; (3/10) Chk #89751, (3/23) Chk #90110, (3/31) Chk #90284-90286, (4/4) Chk
#90396. LeRoy McCullough seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

LeRoy McCullough moved approval of Capital Project Fund 2005 #3070 Expenditures for March 2006 in the
amount of $120,672.00; (3/10) Chk #89752-89758, (3/15) Chk #89759, (3/17) Chk #89983, (3/23) Chk
#90111, (3/29) Chk #90208, (3/31) Chk #90287-90291, (4/4) Chk #90397. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the
motion passed unanimously.

Luck Krakowiak moved approval of Gift Fund #6010 Expenditures for March 2006 in the amount of $873.03;
(3/10) Chk #89601-89602, (3/16), Chk #89849-89850, (3/23) Chk #90063-90064. LeRoy McCullough
seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

LeRoy McCullough moved to modify his previous motion for General Fund #0010 Expenditures March 2006.
The amount should be $5,556,751.85. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

FEDERAL WAY 320" SITE SELECTION

Bill Ptacek said that during the past several months KCLS has been in conversations with the City of Federal Way
and Sound Transit regarding the possibility of relocating the Federal Way 320" Library. He explained that at
their April 18 City Council meeting, Federal Way officials acknowledged initiating these discussions. He pointed
out that KCLS’ ten-year Capital Plan calls for the expansion of the Federal Way 320" Library at its current site.
Because the Board of Trustees has the ability to change the Capital Plan for reasons such as changing conditions,
unforeseen circumstances, financial implications, etc., KCLS agreed to consider the alternative location
proposed by the City of Federal Way. In response to a question raised during public comment, he briefly noted
that KCLS has no offer for the purchase of the current site.

Bill Ptacek explained that staff is recommending that KCLS not pursue relocation of the Federal Way 320"
Library to the Sound Transit site based on an evaluation of the existing location and Sound Transit site utilizing
the Board-approved Site Selection Policy, as well as the information gathered during a public meeting on April
12. He added that the majority of comments at that public meeting were in favor of keeping the library at its
existing location. In addition, Bill Ptacek pointed out that on April 18, the Federal Way Chamber of Commerce
wrote to KCLS in support of the “wishes of the community...to keep the library in its current location.” The
Federal Way Mayor also wrote to the Board indicating that at their April 18 council meeting the City Council
unanimously approved a statement which requests that “the King County Library System no longer consider the
Sound Transit Center as a potential relocation option for the S. 320" Street Library.”

Bill Ptacek briefly mentioned that sentiment was expressed at the public meeting that additional library service
is needed for residents living east of Interstate 5. As a former Federal Way resident, Bill Ptacek said it became
clear during public meetings that while the community continues to struggle with its identity, the current library
serves as an important anchor. LeRoy McCullough moved that the Board concur with the staff
recommendation not to proceed with Sound Transit Center site for the reasons stated, including public
comment and the sense of community established at the current site. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the
motion passed unanimously.

KCLS Board Meeting Page 5 25 April 2006



Questions were raised by audience members regarding what the Board had actually decided, particularly
whether the Federal Way 320" Library would stay at its current site. Staff explained that If KCLS had decided
there was sufficient justification to relocate the Federal Way 320" Library to the Sound Transit Center site, the
Board would have had to undertake a process to alter the ten-year Capital Plan. Because the Board moved not
to proceed with the Sound Transit Center site, KCLS will proceed with the unchanged, Board-approved Capital
Plan, which calls for the expansion of the Federal Way 320" Library at its current site.

RESOLUTION 2006-02

Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of Resolution 2006-02. LeRoy McCullough seconded and the motion passed
unanimously.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SEATTLE PUBLIC LIBRARY (SPL)

Bill Ptacek explained that the Director of the Seattle Public Library has informed him that their Board doesn’t
meet until later this week and thus, will not respond to KCLS’ letter sent March 21. He noted that the indication
is that the SPL Board will favorably receive the ideas contained in that letter, particularly related to the option
currently being explored: a continued payment by SPL of $104,000, full access of SPL by KCLS patrons, but a
restriction on Seattle residents from placing holds at KCLS (an activity that contributes significantly to the cross-
use imbalance). Bill Ptacek pointed out that if, in the coming months, the two library boards agree to this
compromise, KCLS will need sufficient time to implement and communicate the service alteration.

In addition, KCLS staff has communicated with the City of Renton regarding a cross-use study with Renton Public
Library using the methodology derived by Berk and Associates. KCLS has been asked to postpone the study until
the City of Renton hires a new library director. LeRoy McCullough asked if the survey would also apply to other
jJurisdictions, or that the general principle would consistently apply to all situations. Bill Ptacek explained that
the premise of reciprocal borrowing is a mutually beneficial relationship and that KCLS would need to resolve
the cross-use imbalance with Seattle Public Library before proceeding with additional cross-use studies.

ELECTRONIC GAME PROGRAMS AT KCLS

Bill Ptacek introduced Barbara Carmody (Education and Teen Services Coordinator) and Michael Denton
(Issaquah/Sammamish libraries) to talk about KCLS” gaming program called Game On! Because teen patrons have
repeatedly voiced their desire to have this type of programming and after staff attended the Gaming, Learning
and Libraries Symposium in 2005, Barbara Carmody explained that KCLS launched this pilot program at the
Covington, North Bend, Issaquah and Foster libraries as a 1-2 hour program being held in KCLS meeting rooms,
generally offered once per week, per location. She briefly reviewed highlights of a presentation to KCLS staff in
April 2006 made by Eli Neiburger, who is in charge of the Ann Arbor District Library gaming tournaments:

+ Why Videogames? Libraries must stay relevant and that it is important to draw teens to the library
during their formative years to leave. The library becomes relevant to teens by offering them something
they value. Gaming events can be a core service, just like Story Times. Just as reading a story at home
becomes a social event called Story Time at a library, a game program becomes a social event for teens.
Games have content just as stories do. Teens are the heroes in their games. Once you buy the
equipment, you can reproduce events over and over at a low cost.

Barbara Carmody explained that this popular program attracts teens to the library, gets them off the computers
in the main area of the library and helps staff promote core services to a tough audience. She acknowledged that
the program can guarantee that the teens will use library services; however, it may serve that purpose as a
secondary goal. Michael Denton proceeded to show the Nintendo Game Cube, used for four players using a
shared TV or projector. He pointed out that KCLS only offers multi-player games that encourage cooperation.
Gaming is inherently social as gamers interact with each other through the technology of games. Because there
is some set-up required of systems like the Nintendo Game Cube, Michael Denton demonstrated the use of
portable Nintendo DS consoles, which allows wireless game play.

Michael Denton said the Nintendo DS consoles are about $129 each. Lucy Krakowiak asked how KCLS avoid theft
of the units. Michael Denton explained that he runs the program from the reference desk and that the consoles
are checked out to the teens for in-library use only; they must be returned one-half hour before the library
closes. Barbara Carmody mentioned that 38 teens participated in Foster’s first gaming program. An audience
member asked about limiting programming on games for explicit content and/or violence. Barbara Carmody

KCLS Board Meeting Page 6 25 April 2006



explained that only library games can loaded on the systems (teens can bring in their own games) and that KCLS
is offer games that are rated “E for Everyone” or “T for Teens 13 and older.”

LeRoy McCullough asked Barbara Carmody to talk more about the benefits of the program. Barbara Carmody
explained that video gaming builds community with, and within, the teen population and encourages a diversity
of participants and interactions between them. She said research has shown that video games encourage the
development of communication, strategy and collaborative problem solving skills between gamers. Video gamers
also develop a willingness to take risks, exploring innovative and offbeat approaches to problem solving, and
learn the flexibility needed to multitask. In addition, most of today's games require kids to learn complex rule
systems, master challenging new interfaces, follow dozens of shifting variables in real time and prioritize
between multiple objectives. Many young business leaders share a set of attitudes and behaviors that are
traceable to their childhood immersion in video games. She reiterated that, as the next generation of voters,
KCLS must meet the needs of this age group and discover ways to engage them with the library. LeRoy
McCullough also asked if there was additional space or sound-proofing needed for this program. Barbara Carmody
said the programs appear not to have a noise impact on external library, but noted that some libraries will not
be able to offer the program because of space limitations.

PUBLIC MEETING PROTOCOL

Bill Ptacek introduced attorney Tamara Watts from Preston, Gates and Ellis who explained that the Planning
Committee had met to discuss development of a policy to help facilitate orderly input during public meetings.
She explained that the Board is interested in balancing the need to limit the amount of time allocated per
person for public comment, while retaining adequate opportunity to hear from as many people as possible on a
variety of topics. She pointed out that the draft policy being presented to the Board is consistent with the Open
Public Meetings Act. She provided the following summary:

+ The Board will receive public testimony during the first thirty (30) minutes of each Board meeting; however,
this period may be modified at the discretion of the Board President.

+ Any person wishing to speak at a Board meeting must register on the speaker sign-up sheet prior to the start
of such meeting and must indicate his/her full name, address, whether he/she is speaking in his/her
individual capacity or as a representative of a group, and the topic he/she will address.

+ Each speaker will be allowed up to three (3) minutes to testify, except that an individual representing an
organization or association will be allowed up to five (5) minutes.

+ Testimony will be grouped by agenda item and will be heard in the order in which such items appear on the
meeting agenda. Individuals wishing to address items that do not appear on the agenda will be given the
opportunity to speak if there is time remaining during the public testimony period, after speakers addressing
agenda items have offered their testimony.

Amongst individuals testifying on the same topic, testimony will be taken on a first-come, first-served basis.
If more individuals sign up to speak than can be accommodated during the time set aside for public
testimony, the President may, in his/her discretion, limit the number of individuals speaking on each subject
and/or reduce the time allocated to each speaker, in order to allow more individuals the opportunity to
speak and to ensure that the Board is able to hear testimony regarding multiple agenda items.

+ Any individual may submit written testimony at any time, regardless of whether he/she also offers oral
testimony.

LeRoy McCullough asked Tamara Watts if the policy was legal. Tamara Watts affirmed and indicated that the
policy will come before the Board of Trustees for approval at the next Board meeting.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Bill Ptacek referred the Board of Trustees to his written report, but highlighted the following:

+ Following last month’s Board Meeting, KCLS sent a letter to the City of Newcastle informing them of the
Board’s site selection decision and offered to explore the possibility of co-locating with City Hall on the
vacant library site. Mayor Jean Garber responded that the City Council voted not to pursue that course of
action and will instead continue to work on a civic center project at the site of the present city hall.

+ The United States Depository Library Council met in Seattle earlier this month. Several public librarians and
Penny Hazelton of the University of Washington advised the U.S. Printer General that the Government
Printing Office should focus on making all government documents available electronically. The U.S. Printer
General seemed excited to go back and talk to Congress about it.

KCLS Board Meeting Page 7 25 April 2006






